ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
May 19, 2003
10:35 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Scott Ogan, Chair

Senat or Thomas Wagoner, Vice Chair
Senator Fred Dyson

Senator Ben Stevens

Senat or Ral ph Seeki ns

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Kim Elton
Senat or Ceor gi anna Lincoln

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 283
"An Act relating to limtations on coal |eases.”
MOVED HB 283 OUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 24(JUD)
"An Act relating to intergovernnmental agreenents wth the
federal governnment regarding nanagenent of fish or ganme in the
state."”

MOVED CSHB 24(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 28(FIN)
"An Act relating to adjustnments to royalty reserved to the state
to encourage ot herwi se uneconom ¢ production of oil and gas; and
providing for an effective date."”

MOVED CS SSHB 28(FIN) OUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
HB 283 - See Resources mnutes dated 5/16/03 and 5/18/03.

HB 24 - See State Affairs mnutes dated 5/17/03 and Resources
m nut es dated 5/18/03.

HB 28 - No previous action to record.

W TNESS REG STER

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- May 19, 2003



Representati ve Bruce Weyhrauch

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of HB 24

M. Steve Wite

Assi stant Attorney General

Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Told nenbers HB 24 wll not affect existing
agreenent s

M. Ron Sonerville

Advi sor to the House & Senate Majority

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions about HB 24

Represent ati ve Nor m Rokeberg

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Co- sponsor of HB 28

Representative Vic Kohring

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Co- sponsor of HB 28

M. Ken Boyd

Al aska G| and Gas Associ ati on (AC&)

121 West Fireweed Lane

Anchor age, Al aska 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports CS SSHB 28(FI N)

M. Kevin Banks

Division of Gl and Gas

Department of Natural Resources

550 W 7th Ave. Ste 800

Anchorage AK 99501- 3560

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions about CS SSHB 28( FI N)

M. Mark Myers, Director
Division of Gl and Gas
Departnent of Natural Resources
550 W 7th Ave. Ste 800
Anchorage AK 99501- 3560

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- May 19, 2003



POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions about CS SSHB 28( FI N)

M. Kevin Tabl er

Manager, Land and Govt. Affairs

Union Q| Conpany of California (Unocal)

909 W 9th Ave

Anchor age, Al aska 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports CS SSHB 28( FI N)

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
TAPE 03-49, SIDE A

CHAI R SCOIT OGAN called the Senate Resources Standing Conmttee
neeting to order at 10:35 a.m Senators Wagoner, Stevens, Dyson
and Chair QOgan were present. The conmttee took up HB 283.

HB 283- ACREAGE FOR COAL LEASES

CHAIR OGAN informed nenbers that at the last hearing on this
| egi slation, he was concerned about coal |eases overlaying
traditional oil and gas |eases because coal is available in
areas that are also available for areawide leasing for oil and

gas in the Tyonek Basin. He noted the |anguage on page 1, line
11, reads, "The coal deposits in the land covered by the
application shall be tenporarily set aside" therefore the coal
| eases will not affect deep hole oil and gas | eases. He said he

di scussed the matter with Division of Gl and Gas staff and
| earned that a conpany with a coal |ease can exploit the shall ow
gas for either production or safety reasons. He said his
concerns have been addressed.

SENATOR WAGONER nmoved HB 283 from commttee wth individual
recomendations and its attached zero fiscal note.

CHAIR OGAN announced that all nmenbers were present except
Senators Lincoln and Elton. He then announced that without
obj ection, HB 283 noved fromcomittee.

CHAI R OGAN announced an at-ease. Upon reconvening, the committee
took up HB 24.

CSHB 24(JUD) - AGREEMENTS ON MANAGEMENT OF FI SH AND GAME

REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE WEYHRAUCH, sponsor of HB 24, told nenbers
HB 24 follows on the heels of legislation introduced by Chair
Qgan that said the state will in no way cooperate or spend funds
on the Gacier Bay lawsuit. He explained that in the early

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- May 19, 2003



1980s, in the Alaska WIldlife Aliance versus Jensen case, the
District Court of Alaska and the Ninth GCrcuit Court indicated
that ANILCA did not prohibit comercial fishing in dacier Bay
but that the National Park Service <could prohibit it by
regul ation. Thereafter, the National Park Service began a
process of pronmulgating regulations to prohibit and restrict
commercial fishing in dacier Bay National Park. Senator Ted
Stevens then introduced |egislation, which Congress adopted,
that said commercial fishing should be closed in certain areas
of the park and restricted to those who have a lifetinme access
permt for the tanner, halibut and salnmon troll fisheries. That
is the status of fishing in dacier Bay now Congress also
established a conpensation programrelated to those closures and
restrictions. Senat or Fr ank Mur kowsKi t hen i ntroduced
| egi slation, S 501, which Congress adopted, that said the State
of Alaska and the National Park Service shall enter into co-
managenent agreenents on the nmanagenent of comercial fisheries
in the outside waters of d acier Bay National Park.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH told nenbers HB 24 was originally
introduced to prohibit the State of Alaska from entering into
any co-nmanagenent agreenent with the federal governnent or a
sovereign entity. If it did enter into those agreenents, the
| egi slature would have to review the agreenments. During the
hearings in the House, it becane apparent that certain co-
managenent agreenents between the federal and state governnents
benefit the State of Al aska, such as the nmanagenent of bowhead
whal es or waterfowl, so the House did not want to prohibit or
require legislative review of all co-nmanagenent agreenents. CSHB
24(JUD) now says the State of Alaska may not enter into an
agreenent that cedes jurisdiction to the federal governnent. He
st at ed:

You do not want to have any state...public servant or
bureaucrat, having a co-nanagenent agreenent with the
f eder al gover nnment t hat cedes jurisdiction by
contract, which we <can't do by Constitution or
statute. And, tactically, the reason you want to do
that is because eventually if the federal governnent
says we have nmmnagenent jurisdiction over this
resource, and you agreed to that in a contract, then
that nay underm ne any argunent that says no, federal
governnment, you don't have nmanagenent jurisdiction
over our resources - the State of Al aska does. So, by
passing this statute, tactically, you can say if there
wer e a co- managenent agr eenent and it ceded
jurisdiction of managenent over a fishery, it would

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- May 19, 2003



have been void as against public policy of the State
of Alaska. And | think that's, sort of as a tactical
reason, why this was introduced, to prohibit by
contract what we can't do by statute or regulation,
the secession of our nanagenent and jurisdiction of
our resources to the federal governnent.

CHAI R OGAN said he toured the Situk River in Yakutat a few years
ago, an area with sone conflicts. A federal permt is required
to float a state river. He said he got an earful fromthe |ocals
in the area and had to hold his tongue while the federal
officials were checking everyone's permts. He asked if this
| egislation will deal with that problem

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said it would if the State of Al aska
and the National Park Service said the federal governnment has
jurisdiction to manage the [riverbed] on behalf of the state or
if [the state] cedes jurisdiction of fish and gane managenent on
that river. It is narrow on those issues. It arguably could
address the co-nmanagenent agreenent between the National Park
Service and the state if the state, by nmanagenent agreenent or a
menor andum of understanding, says it wll give the federal
governnent the authority to do so, whether or not that 1is
al l owabl e under the Al aska Constitution. He said the |egislation
is intended to nmake any adm ssion by the state void if the
federal governnent intends to use it against the state later in
court.

CHAI R OGAN asked a representative of the Departnent of Law to
comment on the l|egislation and describe its application "in the
field."

MR. STEVE VH TE, Assistant Attorney General, Departnent of Law
(DAL), told nenbers he talked to staff at the Al aska Departnent
of Fish and Gane (ADF&G who could not identify any agreenents
this legislation wuld apply to at this time. HB 24 would be
preventive for future agreenents. He said as Representative
Weyhrauch said, the intent is not to interfere with the state's
interaction wth the federal gover nnment on cooperative
managenent that does not give away the state's authority in any
manner. For exanple, the state cooperates wth the federal
government to inplenment fishery nmanagenment plans under the North
Pacific Fisheries Mnagenent Council and it shares research
information for subsistence managenent on federal |ands. The
state and federal governnents also have agreenents involving
mgratory waterfow. In those situations, the state cooperates
with the federal governnent, which was given the authority by

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- May 19, 2003



Congress through the Supremacy Clause, to regulate in those
areas. The state assists to nmke sure its interests are
i nvol ved.

MR WHTE said if ADF&G attenpted to give away the state's
managenment authority, the contract would be subject to being
voi ded by the courts because it would be outside of the state's
authority to do so.

CHAIR OGAN said he begs to differ that no existing agreenents
have given away authority. He said a recent ruling by the
federal subsistence board for subsistence fishing for rainbow
trout in western Alaska is egregious, according to sone
biologists. He also referred to the 20 halibut per day
subsi stence catch established by the federal subsistence board.
He said he is concerned that while the state mght not
technically be ceding its authority, the federal subsistence
board does not have a mandate to manage for sustained vyield.
Therefore, the state is allowing the federal governnment to
manage its resources in state waters and subnerged |ands by
doi ng not hing, which is ceding by default.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked if the state has cooperative agreenents
with the federal government for the managenent of fish for any
purpose within the navigable streanms or within three mles of
the coastline of the state at this tine.

MR. WHI TE said he is personally not aware of any. He noted that
M. WIlianms of ADF&G was shaking his head "no."

SENATOR SEEKI NS asked, if the federal governnent clains it has
managenent authority over fish for subsistence uses in the Yukon
Ri ver, whet her ADF&G recognizes that claimand enters into a co-
managenent agreenent.

MR WHI TE said the situation on subsistence is very difficult
because the federal governnment has nmanagenent authority over
sonme navi gable waters but not all.

SENATOR SEEKINS said in the Totenoff case, the Al aska Suprene
Court said that is not true.

MR. WHI TE agr eed.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked if M. Wite is saying the Totenoff case
is tolled so that the state can have these agreenents.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- May 19, 2003



MR VWH TE replied, "No. The Ninth Crcuit ruled contrary to the
state supreme court on the Totenoff case."”

SENATOR SEEKI NS di sagreed. He said the Totenoff case was never
brought to the Ninth Crcuit Court. The Al aska Suprene Court
said, in the Totenoff case, that the State of Al aska did not
have to recogni ze the federal clains.

CHAIR OGAN clarified the decision said that is the situation
unl ess the case goes to the U. S. Suprene Court.

SENATOR SEEKI NS again asked if the state is now involved in any
co- managenent agreenents in violation of the Totenoff decision
made by the Al aska Suprene Court.

MR. VWH TE said he does not believe the state has any agreenents
along those lines. ADF& is <closely watching the federal
governnment's exertion over subsistence managenent and, if the
federal government goes beyond what AN LCA allows, the state
woul d chal | enge.

SENATOR SEEKINS said that is his concern. He again asked if the
state is conplying, via contract, or spending any noney to
assi st the federal governnment to exert managenent authority over
fish on the state's subnerged | ands.

MR WHI TE said he does not believe the state has any fornal
agreenents. He said the state shares research and conments on
proposals, such as the subsistence halibut fishery. He said
ADF&G objected to a recent proposal before the federa
subsi stence board to allow for customary trade. He told nenbers
to the extent the federal subsistence board is taking action,
ADF&G is commenting to protect the state's interests but it has
not entered into any agreenents to assist the federal board.

CHAIR OGAN stated, "I'd like to add a coment. | can't resist
taking the bait. You said they were just watching it and the
departnment just sat back and watched while the feds underm ne
the sovereign rights of our state to nmanage our resources and
the Governor rolled over - the |ast Governor rolled over and, in
ny opinion, violated his oath in the process...."

SENATOR SEEKINS said he was just curious whether any existing
contracts would violate HB 24, if it is enacted.

MR. WHI TE again said no existing contracts woul d.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- May 19, 2003



SENATOR WAGONER asked Representative Wyhrauch whether the
lifetime permits in @acier Bay include the halibut fishery and
whether they are transferable or restricted to the current
owners. He questioned whether [Congress] nmade a wthdrawal so
that the state will never again be able to go into d acier Bay
and harvest its resources.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said the congressional action neans

that no nore comercial fishing operations will take place in
G acier Bay. Sport fishing, charter fishing, cruise ships,
kayaki ng and hi king, anmong other activities, will be allowed in

G aci er Bay.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS said he believes the permt holders were
conpensated as wel | .

REPRESENTATI VE  WEYHRAUCH told nmenbers that $23 mllion was
awarded to people who nade clainms for conpensation under the
portion of the congressional act that closed and restricted
commercial fishing in dacier Bay. Those commercial fishernen
who received l|ifetime access permts my or my not have
recei ved conpensation; they could have applied. Sonme lifetine
access permt holders applied but were denied either initially
or because they initially obtained noney but were then reversed
to zero on appeal because the National Park Service tinkered
with the nunbers for the conpensation program

SENATOR BEN STEVENS stated, "If the federal governnent had a
clause like this in their law, the FMPs [Fisheries Mnagenent
Pl ans] and North Pacific and civil co-managenent agreenents that
we nmanage for the feds now would not be able to exist.”

REPRESENTATI VE = WEYHRAUCH sai d out si de of t he three-ml e

boundaries, those could still exist, particularly for the crab
FMP in the Bering Sea. The State of Al aska and federal
government could still enter into those co-managenent agreenents

because that is a federally nmnanaged resource. The intent of HB
24 is to address state waters and to say if a co-nanagenent
agreenent cedes rmanagenent or jurisdiction unauthorized by
statute or the Alaska Constitution, an agreenent could not be
made by contract.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS said if the table was turned and the federa
government coul d not cede managenent authority to the state, the
state could not enter into a nmanagenent agreenment wth the
federal governnent.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- May 19, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said the state could enter into an
agreenent with the federal governnent if the State of Al aska had
a claim over the managenent and jurisdiction by constitutiona

right. That jurisdiction would exist no matter what the
managenent agreenment said. The jurisdiction and nmanagenent,

whet her federal or state, still exist. If the state has a claim
on the managenent and jurisdiction over those fishing rights
under law, it could not give those away by contract.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked if the state could not give away
managenent by contract.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH r epl i ed:

It can't give it away - it can't say we give you the
right to have managenent and jurisdiction of our
resources by contract because if that was prohibited
by Constitution or statute, the state couldn't give it
away by contract. The state couldn't cede that
jurisdiction by contract what it can't cede now by | aw
or Constitution. So, by entering into a co-nmanagenent
agreenent, or - if you want to call it a co-nmanagenent
agreenent - an agreenent with the federal governnent
of federal fisheries, the state isn't ceding any
jurisdiction over those fishery resources because the
state by Constitution doesn't have jurisdiction over
those resources. It's a federal resource.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS said he was suggesting a role reversal so
the federal governnment could not cede its authority to manage to
the state. The state nanages federal resources, in certain
i nstances, but the state would not be able to cede to them

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said the state could allow the federa
government to manage the resource in the state. CSHB 24(JUD)
woul d prohibit any assertion that the state has given up its
managenent and jurisdiction over those resources by contract. |If
the state has a dispute with the federal governnent over who has
the right, the federal governnent could not claim it in court
via the contract. The contract cannot override the state's
plenary ability to manage and have jurisdiction over the
resources and nothing by contract dimnishes the |egal argunent.

SENATOR SEEKINS said he believes Representative Wyhrauch's
argunent parallels a decision in an early 1990s case naned New
York State versus United States of America. That decision
basically said a sovereign cannot realign the boundary between

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 9- May 19, 2003



these sovereigns by agreenent. It would have to be done by
constitutional amendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH added, "Or to say that we have the
| egal authority to do that - nothing dimnishes that."

SENATOR SEEKI NS agreed and said CSHB 24(JUD) is a restatenent of
that decision. He said he likes that approach because it is also
consistent with the D nkum Sands case. He asked if the State of
Alaska is involved in a [US.] Supreme Court case right now on
t he ownership of the subnerged lands in d acier Bay.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said that case is Al aska versus United
States, which is a quiet title action filed in the U S. Suprene
Court.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked if CSHB 24(JUD) nerely says that no
agreenent the state enters into affects its sovereign control.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said that is correct. He noted that M.
Somerville has provided him with several exanples of how it
works with the federal fisheries.

SENATOR SEEKI NS nmmaintained that CSHB 24(JUD) wll not prevent
the state from entering into a contract wth the federal

governnment. It just allows the federal governnent to nmanage if
it has the manpower and will but it retains ownership by the
state.

CHAI R OGAN said his concern in the past has been that the state
has been terribly inconsistent wth assertion of sovereignty on
navi gabl e waters. He comment ed:

W' re saying on one hand we want to assert sovereignty
in dacier Bay because we all agree on that one. But,
losing by default by not appealing to the Suprene
Court, we gave up sovereignty of the rest of the
subnerged lands - it's a pretty schizophrenic state
position and set a terrible precedent and it's
probably one of the reasons we're here now.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS pointed out that the reference to AS
16. 20. 010, on page 2, line 5, relates to legislative recognition
of a state gane refuge. [Section 1] says the state has
jurisdiction over all fish and gane in the state except in those
areas where it has assented to federal control but the state has

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- May 19, 2003



not assented to control of fish and gane in d acier Bay Nationa
Par k.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked that M. Sonerville address sone
of the federal issues that Senator Stevens rai sed.

MR. RON SOMERVI LLE, advisor on natural resource issues to the
House and Senate Myjorities, told nenbers that the state has
concurrent jurisdiction but it can adopt regulations within the
regul ati ons adopted by the federal agencies related to marine
manmal s, waterfow, and halibut. In other cases, such as federa
jurisdiction beyond the state's waters, the federal agencies
del egate authority to manage those areas; they do not cede that
authority to the state. The federal governnent allows the state
to manage halibut wunder the treaty, but it has not ceded
authority to the state.

CHAIR OGAN remarked, "In other words, we roll over but not
wi thout kicking a little bit."

MR. SOVERVILLE said that is one way of putting it but, in sone
cases, such as with marine mammuals, the state is preenpted so
anything it gets at the preenption process the federal
government can del egate back to the state.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked if the suprenmacy clause overrides the
state in the managenent of fish and gane in state waters.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said the State of Al aska canme into the
Union with the promise that it would be on an equal footing with
other states. That was affirnmed in a Uah |ands case before the
U S. Suprene Court. The state was in a constant battle with the
federal governnment to assert that it should be on equal footing
with the other states and colonies and that Al aska should have
control and managenent over its subnmerged |ands and waters at
statehood. That has been a defining nonent in the state's
history and the dispute will continue of who should control,
own, nanage and have use of lands in the state. He said he
cannot answer Senator Seekins' question but he is very concerned
about the issue. He repeated that the intent of the |egislation
is to nmake it clear that no agent of the state, who is not an
el ected official, or through <constitutional and statutory
anmendnent, is allowed to dimnish our ability to claim
managenent and jurisdiction of our resources.

CHAI R OGAN commented that the state not only gained control of
subnerged | ands [at statehood] but it also gained title to those

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- May 19, 2003



subnerged |ands. The equal footing provision was specifically
included in the Statehood Act: the quitclaim of title to
subnerged lands and with it the right to control not only the
| ands but the water columms and fish and gane init.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH cl arified that title case is before the
U S. Suprenme Court's naster at this tine.

CHAIR OGAN stated, "But the goofy ruling of the Ninth Grcuit
saying the reserved water rights doctrine - because this
nol ecul e of water ran across federal |ands sonehow gets themto
control all of the fishing dowmstream is what the |ast CGovernor
dropped the ball on.™

SENATOR SEEKINS asked if the Statehood Act provided that the
State of Alaska was the beneficiary of the 1953 Subnerged Lands
Act in equal footing with all other states.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH sai d he could not answer that question.
SENATOR SEEKINS said it is his understanding that it did.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked why AS 16.20.010 is referenced on page
2 since it has no definition of managenent.

SENATOR SEEKI NS pointed out the words, "added by Sec. 1 of this
Act." follow

SENATOR BEN STEVENS said his point is that the language [in
Section 1] is restricted to AS 16.20.010, which pertains only to
G aci er Bay.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said he continually queried George
Uermhle, who drafted the legislation, about Sec. 2. M.
Uternohle said Sec. 2 was necessary as a transitory provision
for existing agreenments and was "phase-out" |anguage to put the
agencies on notice. He said the "neat" of the legislation is
Sec. 1, which addresses nmanagenent.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS said the way he reads the bill, subsection
(c) only applies to AS 16. 20. 010.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said that is correct.
SENATOR BEN STEVENS said then all of the talk about other fish

and gane on state lands does not apply because AS 16.20.010
applies only to dacier Bay National Park, bird and national

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- May 19, 2003



wildlife refuges or navigable waters within or adjoining the
park and preserve.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH r epl i ed:

...what happened in this commttee is exactly the
dynam c that happened in House Judiciary, where people
wanted to make it very broad and the discussion got
very broad and philosophical and you bring in every
agency and every agreenent. But the intent of this
bill was to deal with the co-nmanagenent agreenents in
G acier Bay National Park and S 501 by Senator Frank
Mur kowski, which required co-nmanagenent agreenents
bet ween the state and federal governnent.

MR. SOMERVILLE said Senator Stevens is correct in that the
sponsor's intent was to cover G acier Bay and the mandatory co-
managenent agreenents. The request of the House commttee to
expand it to include all state |lands and waters shoul d have been
pl aced in a separate section.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS said that is what he was trying to clarify.

REPRESENTATI VE  WEYHRAUCH told nenbers that the [ House]
commttees wanted to nake the bill apply to every agreenment with
every agency. However, that would have made the bill unw el dy
and could have harmed sone of the potentially beneficial
mnisterial contracts the state has entered into. He said the
focus was on d acier Bay because of S 501, which nmandated co-
managenent agreenents with the state. He believes the Al aska
Department of Fish and Gane should never cede nmanagenent
jurisdiction that mght sonehow decrease the state's ability to
defend it later in court.

SENATOR DYSON said he appreciates the sponsor's efforts and
believes the legislation is narrowy ained and well crafted. He
said his last comment characterized the feelings of legislators
in that they would all like to expand the legislation but it is
i nappropriate to do so at this time. He then noved CSHB 24(JUD)
out of commttee with individual recomendations and its zero
fiscal note.

CHAI R OGAN announced that w thout objection, the notion carried.
He then announced an at-ease.

CS SSHB 28(FIN)-O L & GAS ROYALTY MODI FI CATI ON

SENATE RES COW TTEE -13- May 19, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE NORM RCKEBERG, co-sponsor of HB 28, told nenbers
that HB 28 is a "tune-up" of AS 38.05.180(j). That section of
statute pertains to royalty nodifications of marginal fields. In
1995, the new Governor brought forth this legislation as a ngjor
centerpiece of his Admnistration to try to increase oi
production in Al aska. That bill was crafted in such a way that
it created inpossible barriers for it to work. During that nine-
year period, no grants of royalty reduction have been granted by
the state. This bill nodifies that statutory section to renove
sone of those barriers and it sinplifies the |anguage. He
directed nenbers' attention to the |anguage on page 2, beginning
on line 24. That particul ar |anguage enbodi es, in one paragraph,
the discretionary ability of the comm ssioner to grant a royalty
nodi fication under the ternms set forward in it. It deletes
| anguage that indicates that if a royalty nodification 1is
granted, the state would have to ultimately recover. The intent
was to increase oil exploration but it required that the state
recover its noney even though it was reopening a dry hole by
royalty reductions. He said the provisions of the bill becane
al nost unintelligible.

TAPE 03-49, SIDE B

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said HB 28 renoves that |anguage and
provides for a sliding scale royalty to be determned by the
comm ssi oner who, under the Constitution, nust act in the best
interest of the state. It provides that relevant factors be
taken into consideration, such as a change in the price of oil
and gas, in production rates, production ultimte recovery,
devel opnment costs and operating costs. Therefore, if the price
of oil increases, the state's share will increase on a sliding
scale basis. It contains other provisions that renove sone of
the oversight. He said the Administration supports the
| egi sl ati on.

CHAIR OGAN said he instantly recognized this legislation from
his participation on the House Ol and Gas Conmittee years ago.
He asked if there has been any use of the statute.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said there was one application from
Unocal that did not go through. Although the public believes the
| egi slature gave big incentives to the oil industry, the North
Star nodification was the only thing that occurred. He pointed
out that other specific royalty bills targeted certain fields,
particularly in the Cook Inlet area, that had to be enacted
because the statute did not work.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- May 19, 2003



11: 30 a. m

REPRESENTATI VE VIC KOHRI NG co-sponsor of HB 28, told nenbers
the sliding scale would likely be between 3 and 12.5 percent.
The general royalty rate has been 12.5 percent. The comm ssi oner
is granted discretion to determne the rate. The conm ssioner
can make that decision based on an in-house evaluation, or
t hrough an i ndependent contractor. The evaluation will consider
operating costs, field recovery, production rate and vol une.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG commented that the fiscal note indicates
program recei pts at $150, 000. He st at ed:

| caution you - it's just program receipts because of
the requirement of a maximum ceiling on any applicant
where they <can hire a third party consultant.
Actually, 1 think the fiscal note's not correct. It
should be a zero fiscal note. Only if there's an
application would there be any program receipts
generated. So | just wanted to point that out. This
bill is not going to cost the state anything - only in
foregone royalties that we wouldn't perhaps get
otherwwse if they're bringing a shut-in well back on
producti on.

MR. KEN BOYD, an oil and gas consultant, said he was testifying
on behalf of the Alaska Ol and Gas Association (AOCGA). He
stated support for CS SSHB 28(FIN) and said he participated with
Represent ati ve Rokeberg and Senator Ogan and a cast of hundreds
seven or eight years ago who worked on the existing law. He said
the current royalty reduction statute is awkwardly worded and
very difficult to inplenent.

SENATOR SEEKI NS asked if a nodel already exists for the sliding
scale or whether this bill wll give the conmm ssioner the
discretion to set a sliding scale for each particular field.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRING said it is his understanding this bill
gi ves the commi ssioner that discretion. He deferred to M. Mers
for an answer about an existing nodel.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked if a cap exists for the state's overall
agreenent with an oil conpany or whether there is a seller
price.

MR. KEVIN BANKS, Division of QI and Gas, Departnent of Natural
Resources (DNR) said, regardi ng whether a nodel exists, DNR uses

SENATE RES COW TTEE -15- May 19, 2003



fairly standard discount cash-flow nodels. DNR would nore than
likely tailor a sliding scale royalty provision to the specifics
of each applicant. He said he can't say the bill contains a cap.
DNR coul d conceivably trade a 12.5 percent royalty for a royalty
nodi fication that would allow for sone sliding scale that could
exceed, in rare instances, the 12.5 percent rate. However, that
woul d depend upon the kind of project and the unknowns at the
time of application.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked if the oil conpanies will pay nore during
t he "boon" years.

CHAIR OGAN said as nenory serves him he believes there was an
upside in the original |egislation.

MR. BANKS said the original HB 207 contained sone conplicated
| anguage that directed the comm ssioner to develop a system that
would pick up on the upside. Unfortunately, it was witten so
that it renoved any projected royalty nodification benefits to
the applicant. In CS SSHB 28(FIN), the conmm ssioner can
negotiate an upside but is not required to do so. He said he can
think of cases where a sliding scale between 3 and 12.5 percent
woul d provide sufficient incentive to get production on line.
The state's reward for giving up sone of its royalty on the
front end would be to get nore production out of the prospect.

CHAI R OGAN said subsection (3) on line 24, page 2, seens to be
the key to the legislation. It says "sliding scale royalty or
ot her nmechanism' so it provides broad |latitude. He added that it
provi des for an increase or decrease and asked if it gives that
di scretion to the conm ssioner.

MR. BANKS said that is correct.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked if this legislation prevents or allows
the comm ssioner to make rate adjustnments to specific platforns
[in Cook Inlet] wi t hout comng to the legislature for
| egi sl ati on.

REPRESENTATIVE KOHRING said the answer is yes but this
| egi sl ation does not apply to platfornms. He noted that SB 185
pertains to platform royalty reduction and differs from this
| egi slation. He explained that the intent of CS SSHB 28(JUD) is
to encourage the industry to develop three types of fields
because they are not profitable: new fields, existing fields, or
nmot hbal | ed fi el ds.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -16- May 19, 2003



SENATOR BEN STEVENS said if this legislation is not enacted

separate pieces of |egislation would be brought forward, such as
SB 185, asking for royalty rate reductions for specific fields.
He said instead, CS SSHB 28(JUD) defers all | egi sl ative
authority for rate reductions to the comm ssioner.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG said that is correct, for marginal fields
only. He said the legislation is not specific to certain fields;
it applies to any field in the state considered to be
unprofitable. He said the conm ssioner will determ ne whether a
field is profitable after doing an anal ysis of each field.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked M. Mers to describe what kinds of
fields fall under those three categories.

MR. MARK MYERS, Director of the Division of Ol and Gas, DNR
told menbers this bill amends an existing royalty reduction
statute. It does not create a new program it fixes sone
problens in the existing statute. That statute was nodified but
the last set of nodifications created unintended conseguences
that were problematic. CS SSHB 28(JUD) applies in three
situations: to new fields that are not econom c where reducing
the state's royalty share would nake the field go; to fields in
a later stage of production where operating costs exceed the
value of production; and to fields that have been physically
shut in so there is no production flow ng. Reducing the royalty
woul d change the economics sufficiently to start up production
of the field again. This bill gives broad authority to the
conmi ssioner to set terns to recapture upside.

MR. MYERS said once a field is in developnent, a few things

m ght inprove its economcs - operating costs remain the sane
but an increase in oil prices creates a dramatic increase in
profits. Under this bill, rising oil prices can be structured

into the royalty rates. Second, if production itself increases,
which is only likely in a new field, the state needs a nmechani sm

to capture the upside as nore data cones in. This bill allows
for all of the adjustnents by giving the conm ssioner a |ot of
flexibility. However, the agreenments still require |egislative

approval. He said an exanple of a field that is not yet in
production would be the small field at Umat; a field that is
producing but is close to shut-in is Badam, which is currently
produci ng about 1400 barrels per day. He said SB 185, the

platform bill, addresses a unique set of circunstances in Cook
Infet where sone fields are late in life with a 30-year
production history. DNR was confortable with the data about that
area and did not feel it needed a mechanism to recover the

SENATE RES COW TTEE -17- May 19, 2003



upsi de. That |egislation contains a custom zed approach for Cook
Inlet platforns that do not require this sane process. The
advantage of that approach is to retain the infrastructure in
Cook Inlet.

SENATOR WAGONER asked how CS SSHB 28(FIN) wll apply to
abandoned oil wells.

MR. MYERS said they could fall wunder all three categories,
because of the term "field or pool." A deeper reservoir of oil
under a shallow gas reservoir could be a separate reservoir.
Dependi ng on whether that gas had been produced before by field
or pool, it could qualify under any of the three categories. He
said the operator would have to justify that the economics did
not support operation wthout the royalty reduction. He
expl ained that the process for approving the royalty reductions
would be a little different. The prelimnary decision would be
submtted to the legislature during the public comrent period,
however the legislature does not vote to approve royalty
reduction under this bill

SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked if that provision is in Section 8.
MR. MYERS said that is correct.

CHAIR OGAN pointed out there is a $150,000 cap on the anount
that can be paid by the | essees and asked whether that reflects
program recei pts. He also asked if that anobunt is appropriate or
whether it will cost DNR nore than $150,000 to adm nister.

MR. MYERS said that noney would conme from the applicants so
there should be no additional cost to the state if the program
recei pts are authorized. He said that anmount was negotiated with
t he sponsor and he cannot say whether it is totally adequate. In
the past, all of the royalty reduction requests have been
handl ed internally. DNR recognizes that a lot of analysis wl
have to be done on new fields, where little data is avail able.
DNR bel i eves $150, 000 i s an adequate anount.

CHAIR OGAN asked what fields this mght apply to. He noted a
bill just passed the Senate that deals with severance tax breaks
for certain wells. He questioned how the two pieces of
| egi sl ation dovetail and whether CS SSHB 28(FIN) is targeted
toward heavy oil

MR. MYERS said it is targeted at any producing field. He said
fields go through various stages. At a field s end stage, the

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 18- May 19, 2003



operator and the state nust determne when it becones
uneconom c. He said royalty reductions are truly effective at

the very tail end of declining production. He expects this
| egislation to eventually apply to all fields in the state. He
pointed out in the other cases, DNR will have to look at the
i ndi vidual econonmics of each field. He said with heavy oil, as

the technol ogy changes, the econom cs have vastly inproved. DNR
woul d have to take a serious | ook at the detailed economcs, the
engineering and the reservoir. He indicated the heavy oil
reserves are just being tapped now and are in their initial
stages of production. He pointed out the exploration incentive
is specifically crafted to not include wells within units that
are producing or any units that have a plan of devel opnent.

SENATOR DYSON asked if anyone is opposed to CS SSHB 28(FIN).
MR. MYERS said he is not aware of anyone.

REPRESENTATI VE KOHRI NG said he was not aware of anyone either.
The bill had three commttee referrals in the House and he did
not recall any negative testinony.

CHAIR OGAN noted this bill is extensive and he has sone angst
about the short tineframe for study. He asked M. Mers if he is
aware of any flaws that commttee nenbers' nay not be aware of.

MR MYERS said he believes the bill inproves the process.
Al t hough conprom ses are nade in every bill, he believes the
conprom ses are balanced and that the interests of the state are
wel | protected.

SENATOR WAGONER asked if Swanson R ver has any royalty
i ncentives right now.

MR. MYERS said he believes Swanson River is primarily a federal
unit.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS noted that M. Mers said that application
is determned on the end of life determ nation of the field,
which he believes is a trigger to the possibility of a royalty
reduction. He expressed concern that any operator could say a
field is at the end of production life. He asked how DNR woul d
determ ne whether a field is at end of life.

MR. MYERS said this bill allows those royalty reductions to

occur at any stage of a field' s life but, to determne the true
econonics of a field takes a lot of work and is nore difficult

SENATE RES COW TTEE -19- May 19, 2003



the further it is from the end of field because later in the
field life there are nore well and seismc data and production
profiles. He said the calculation is very technical, which is
why the fiscal note contains funds for outside experts.

CHAI R OGAN asked why the | anguage on page 2, lines 5-9, is being
del et ed. He st ated:

| renmenber we had a lot of discussion with the bill
that originally passed about delineation of the oil
and gas field or pool and, instead of delineating it
to allow the comm ssioner to conduct an analysis and
make the findings required by the subsection, we're
elimnating - we're just letting them delineate to the
satisfaction of the commssioner and it doesn't say
anyt hi ng about findings. Wy are we doing that?

MR. MYERS said they wanted the delineation to be done on a
techni cal basis. Representative Rokeberg was concerned about the
| evel of legislative input and cl eaning up the cunbersone nature
of the nechanism He said the original royalty reduction
required two years of production. There was a push at that tine,
primarily by BP, to allow a reduction before production start-
up. BP then asked for the royalty reduction. However, the
reality is that sonme production is necessary to deternmine the
economics of the field. The legislature at that tinme said as
long as the reservoir was delineated, it was willing to grant a
royalty reduction. He said this bill establishes the necessary
| evel of data and who gets to decide whether a reservoir has
been sufficiently delineated.

CHAIR OGAN said the bill contains no sunset data or requirenent
to report to the |egislature.

MR. MYERS clarified that the comm ssioner's prelimnary decision
will be presented to the |egislature. The House anended the bil
to provide the legislature with access to confidential data.

REPRESENTATIVE VIC KOHRING said regarding the potenti al

Per manent Fund earnings that this bill will generate, this bil
essentially deals with three fields. Two are not producing
anything at all. One way to look at the economics is that the

state could get 12.5 percent of nothing, or 3 or 7 percent of
sonet hing, by virtue of the sliding scale.

CHAIR OGAN asked if there is as nmuch known heavy oil on the
North Sl ope as has al ready been di scovered.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 20- May 19, 2003



MR. MYERS said that is correct but the recoverability of that
heavy oil w Il be nmuch | ower, probably 10 to 15 percent.

MR. KEVIN TABLER, WManager of Land and Governnment Affairs for
Unocal, stated support for CS SSHB 28(FIN). He said it is a
substantial inprovenent to the 1995 legislation, in that it
provides clarification and predictability for an applicant.

CHAIR OGAN asked M. Tabler if Unocal applied for a royalty
reduction but did not conplete the process.

MR. TABLER said Unocal pulled out after 18 nonths and a
significant anount of cost.

CHAI R OGAN conmmented this bill is extensive, however the policy
decision to allow royalty reduction was already nmade by the
| egi sl ature.

SENATOR WAGONER noved CS SSHB 28(FIN) from committee wth
i ndi vi dual recomrendations and its attached fi scal note.

CHAI R OGAN announced that w thout objection, the notion carried.
He then recessed the neeting to the call of the Chair at 12:10
p. m

On May 20, 2003, at 6:21 p.m, CHAIR OGAN reconvened the neeting
for the purpose of announcing that the commttee neeting was
adj our ned.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -21- May 19, 2003



